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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Shareholders and the Board of Directors
Empire Insurance Company

2™ Floor Prudential Life Plan Bldg.

843 A. Amaiz Street, Makati City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Empire Insurance Company, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014 and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant acoouniing policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in sccordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of finencial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
tor frand or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our
sudit in sccordance with Philippine Standands on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstaterment,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the entity’s intemal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements, -
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We believe that the audit evidence we have oitained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
Opiniod.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Empire
Insurance Company &5 of December 31, 2014, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year'then
ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Oiher Matier

The financial statements of Empire Insurance Company as of and fior the year ended Diecember 31, 2013 was
audited by another independent auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements on April 15,
2014

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Bevenne Regulations 19-2011 and 15-2010

Orur sudit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole, The supplementary information contained on taxes, duties and licenses fee in Note 32 1o the financial
statemenis is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of
the basic financial statemenis. Such information is the responsibility of management and has been subjected o
the auditing procedures applied in our sudit of the basic financial statements, In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basie financial statements taken as a whole,
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EMFIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
Mates FAIIE ] 3
ASSETS
Currenl asels
Cash and cash equivalents 2427 P 41575606 P 37,794,533
Premiums due From ceding companies 13527 17,231,421 19,610,729
Retnsurance recoverable on basses 2350 &1R39.253 53,800,541
Preiivms receivable 23537 20,468,079 19473421
Commissian receivable 231517 11,193,584 10,557,507 |
Premiuens reserve withheld by ceding compamies  2,3,327 11,120,255 10,931,276
Salvage recoverabhe 2350 #1355 1,393,972
Receivabbes 23500 030222 2,047,021
Current (ax sssels 2 1,397 492 1,006,672
Cither custent assels 2627 1544815 15,849 554
113,269 082 172,515,366
Mon curreni assels
Held:-tommalurity fmancial aseets 2117 00,453,720 226,061,720
Avuilable-for-gale financial assets 2817 06,735,379 176,447,081
Property and squipment 239 5,225,198 4,656,547
Pension assel 118 4,93 867 T4, 13
(Orher nosr-cusrent assels 210 1,766,517 1,131,508
Diefiormed tux nssed, nel 125 1,701 4479310
425,216,379 420,170,402
F 5461 P 592 GRS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Linhilities
Current liabilities
Claims payahle 21127 F TA.13R,687 P ool 816,763
Premiuns dus Lo femsancrs 21327 55,635,300 54919797
Conisnission payakie 21327 18,208,670 21,050,439
Feserve for uncamed premivms 21427 51,565,747 41581 812
Preeniums reserve withheld for reinsurers 21527 2577200 5202 430
Payables 21627 1,927,867 $84,543
Ceher liabilities 117 11,505,543 13568344
B 65037 200424 238
Equity
Share capital 319 250,000,000 . 250,000,000
Reiainad camings 20 108509641 $1,350,822
Unrealized gain on ovnilabie-for-sele
financial nasets 1R27 48,723,794 416,960,007
Treasury stocks 15 (T B8] (76,886}
Femensuremenl jgain 2,08 L oEnETS 4036457
98164 392,361,440
= P GRR 485461 P Sﬂm

Erhmmﬁ;m;nﬁmrh'&m
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMFPANY

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
Hotes 4 2013
Underwriting income 23,12 i 106,706,203 103,015,234
Underwriting expense 230 (83,136,953 ) (83,009,065
Net underwriting income 222 33,569,250 19,086,165
Diber income
Investmien 213 12,215 486 15,330,324
Ciain on sale of investment 2 - ¥3,283,551
Oibers 2 758,797 37,544
12,974,283 38652319
Totsl underwriting and other Income 46,543,533 52,738,684
Oiher direct costs 224 14,694,914 13,112,040
General and administrafive expenses 224 19,923,195 19,353 552
Operating profit before fimance income 11925324 25,271,002
Finanee imeome
Foreign exchomge gain 2327 41,588 267,208
Dividend income x 69774622 50175493
7 L] 5,285 201
Profit before bonus 18,045,534 30,556,200
Baans 2 (2841,830) (4,583,430)
Pralit before income tax 16, 103,704 250972773
Bemelit From imcome tax 135 (1,054, 115) {5,316932)
Net profit for the year 17,157,819 31,289 705
Uiher comprehensive income {loss)
to be reclaenfied to profin or loss
Met gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets 2821 1,771,650 (27.474,074)
Tax efleat _IBH63) 137,383
1,763,787 (21,336.691)
Oiher comprehensive loss
il fo be reclassified fo profif or jass
Remensurement loss 18 (1,938,031) {1 331256)
Tax effect 551404 456,677
(1,356,622 {1,065, 5790
Tatal ensive [ncome for the year P 11,564-& P E?ﬁﬁ
Earnings per share 2,26
Basic and diluted I (%13 P 12.52
_————— — =
Rook value El‘ll‘t 326 P 16393 P 156.90

See Arcompanyiag Noses 1o Firmecio Sarements.
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Hotes

014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPFERATING ACTIVITIES
Prodit hefane ineome fax

16103704 P 2597LTT

Adjustmvents. for;
Drepreciation and amortization a0 1,611,927 2,324,257
Reliremont cxponss 118 492.23% 60,128
[mberest income 123 (12,215,486) (15,331,324
Dhavidend income s (6,977 622) (3,007 .59593)
Foreign exchange gain 2327 (42.588) (267,208}
Operating (loss) meosme befores working capital changes (1,027 .827) 1,040,633
Changes in assets and liabilitics:
{Increase) Decrenss in:
Premiums dss fiom codiig companis 2,3,5.27 1379308 1,628,047
Feinsurance recoversbic on losses 13527 (29,038,711) B2,078.73%
Preminms receivable 1350 (9,595 658) 1,576,871
Commession receivable 13527 (56,7 T) 1,143,506
Fremiums nezerve withheld by caling companics 13527 (158.97%) (3,504 032)
Salvage recoversble 13527 406517 -
Receivahles 11,527 16,799 (118,850)
Ciibeer curment assets 2627 68,229 (6,808.216)
Onled Hon-CUiment assels 100 (634,.90%9) (173.234)
Imcresse (Decnease) in:
Claims payahle 21127 11,421,524 (81,568,679
. Premiums due 1o reinsurers. . 2IL2T J 715506 (1,361,055)
Commission paynble 213,27 T158.231 (2,302 208)
Rosserve for uncamied promiums 21421 #,583,935 2,446,531
Premiums reserve withheld for meinsurers 21527 (2,625,210) 2
Payables 21627 1043224 {339.271)
Othier liabdlitites 1,17 (2,062 801) (3,246,072)
Cash used in operations {10 3686, 400) (3,207,481
Incoee: taxes paid i - (1,135, 916)
Interest received 2423 245,381 1,046,477
Met cash wsed in operating aclivities {10, 020,00%) {3 296 920
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Inberest received i 11,970,105 14,284 847
[Hvidends received 2 6,977,622 5,003
Purchase of svailable-for-sale financial assets 28,27 {18,515 648) {40,000,000)
Proceeds from sale of mvailabde-for-sile financial assets 2827 - 5,624, 566
Purchase of beld-io-maturity financial assets 2727 (B92,000) -
Procesds from beld-to-matarity financisl assets 27281 25,5060, 00D 13,743,250
Purchase of property and equipment 1,30 (2.180.575) (3,534, 038)
et cash ided by (ased in) investing sctivities 13,839 504 (4564 472
Blalamce carried farward 3,738 485 (%261 307)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31
Hoies 204 2013
NET CASH USED IN OFERATING ACTIVITIES F (0,020,000 %) q;llﬁ bl
NET CASH FROVIDED BY (USED IN}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 13,859,504 (4564470
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of dividends 20 - i 100,000, 000y
Acdquizition of remsury stocks 149 - [54.274)
Met cxsh used in financing activities - (10,054,274
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2427 41,588 267,208
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2427 3,781,073 (18,048 458)
CASH AND CASEL EEUI\-'&I.I‘.NTS, JANUARY 1 37,794 55,842,091
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBEHR 31 24 P u,-_:?s@_ P 37,794,533
| e .-!mu.nuuu;,'-h'rr ta Finometal Sinlemenis
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Empire Insurance Company {the Company) was incorporated on December 8, 1949 to engage in the
business and operation of all kinds of insurance, reinsurance, insurance on buildings, aulomobiles, car
and other motor vehicles, goods and merchandise, goods in transit, goods in storage, fire insurance,
earthquake insurance, insurance against accidents, all other forms of undertaking to indemnify any
person against loss, damage or liability arising from unknown or contingent events, except life
insurance,

On May 26, 1999, the Securitics and Exchange Commission approved the Company's application of
extension of amended Articles of Incorporation to extend its life for another Filly (30 years.

The registered office address of the Company is 2* Floor Prudential Life Plan Bldg., 843 A. Amaiz
Street, Makati City,

‘The financial statements of the Company were authorized for issue on April 16, 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The more significant accounting policies and practices of the Company are summuarized below to facilitate
the understanding of data presented in the financial statemerts,

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (FFRS). The term PFRS includes all applicable FFRS, Philippine Accounting Sandards
{PAS) and interpretation, which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council
(FRSC) and adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including SEC
pronouncements.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for available-
fior-zale investments that have been measured at fair value and Held-lo-maturily invesiments measured at
arvortined cost, The Company’s financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, which is the
functional and presentation currency under PFRS. All values are rounded to the nearest peso exeepl as
otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain eritical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or ansas
where assumptions and estimeates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with the PFRS.

Current versus Non-current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilitics in statement of financial position based on current/non-

current classification. An asset as current when it is:

«  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

#  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle o liobility for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A liability is current whens
* [tz expecied 1o be settled in normal sperating cyele
*  ltis held primarily for the purpose of imding
* Itisdue to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or
#  There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of the liability for at least twelve months afier
the reporting period,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-cwrrent,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are clossified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Fair Yalus Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each financial position date.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants af the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

*  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
*  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the usset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

Level 3- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unohservable inputs)

Changes in Accounting Policies
The following explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopied in the preparation of

the financial statements. The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently 1o all
periods presented in these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting policies as
explained below,

New and amended standards

The Company will adopt the follewing new or revised standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations in the respective effective dates:

* PAS 32, Financial Instrumenis: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabifitles,
The amendment has introduced refinement to the meaning of “currently has legally enforceable right to
sel off” and also to clarify the application of the offsetting criteria to settlement system (such as central
clearing house systems) that supply gross settlement mechanism that are nol simulianeous. The
amendment affects presentation only and the Company does not expect to have significant impact on its
financial position and performance.



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 PAS 36, fmpairment of Assets — Recoverable Amownt Disclosres for Non-Financlal Assets
{Amemdmenis)

These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13 on the disclosures required under
PAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of ihe recoverable amourits for the assets or
CGUs for which impairment loss has been recognized or reversed during the period. These amendments
are effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 with earlier
application permitted, provided PFRS 13 is also applied. The amendments affect disclosures only and
have no impact on the Company*s financial position or performance,

« PAS 39, Fimancial Insiraments; Recognition and Measurement Amemdment fe PAS 39 * Novation of
derfvetives "

This amendment provides relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of & hedging
instrument to a central counter party meets specified eriteria. The amendments have no impact on the
Company's financal position or performance.

o Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies

This is an interpretation of 1AS 37, “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets™ IAS 37 seis
aul eriteria for the recognition of a liability, one of which is the requirement for the entity to have a
present obligation as a result of a past event (known as an obligating event). The interprelation clarifics
that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity deseribed in the relevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy, This interpretation has no impact on the Company’s
financial statements,

¢ Amendments o PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27, Investmrern Entities

These amendments mean that many funds and similar entities will be exempt from consolidating most of
their subsidiaries. Instead, they will measure them ai fair value through profit or loss. The amendments
give an exceplion to entities that mee! an “investment entity™ definition and which display particular
chorneteristics. Changes have also been made IFRS 12 to introduce disclosures that an investment entity
rieeds 1o make, These amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

« PFRS 13, Fair Valie Measurenient - Short-term Receivables and Payables. The amendment explains
that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can be held at invoice amounts
when the effect of discounting is immaterial. This amendment has no impact en the Company's financial
position or performance,

o finz Standards [ot . K Existing Standards Effecti
Subsequent 1o Decomber 31, 2014

The Company intends to adopt the: following standards when they become effective. Except as
otherwise indicated, the Company dees not expect the adoption of these new and amended standards 1o
have significani impact on its financial siatements.

* PFRS 9, Financial Insirumerss, PFRS 9, a5 issued, reflects the first and third phases of the project 1o
replace PAS 39 and applies to the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities and
hedge accounting, respectively. Work on the second phase, which relate to impairment of financial
instruments, and the limited amendments @ the classification and measurament model is still ongoing,
with & view to replacs PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair
value at initial recognition. A debdt financial assct may, if the fair value option (FY0) is not invoked, be
subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objective to
hold the assets (o collect the contractual cash Mows and its contractual terms give nise, on specified dates,
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other
debt instruments arc subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, All equity financial
assets are measured al fair value either through OCH or profit or loss, Equity financial assets held for
trading misst be measured al fair value through profit or loss. For liabilities designsed as at FVPL using
the fair value option, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change relating to the entity's own credit risk in OCT would



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

create or enlarge an aceounting mismatch in profit or loss, All other PAS 39 classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilitics have been caried forward for PFRS 9, including the
embedded derivative hifurcation rules and the eriteria for using the FVO, The adoption of the first phase
of PFRS 9 will not have an effect on the classification and measurement of financial Liabilities,

Omn hedge accounting, PFFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge accounting model of FAS 39 with a more
principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness test with an
objectives-based test that focuses on the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument and the effect of credit risk on that economic relationship; allowing risk components (o be
designated as the hedged item, nod only for financial items, but also for non-financial items, provided
that the risk component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value of
an aplion, the forward element of a forward contract and any forcign cumrency basis spread to be
excluded from the designation of a financial instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted for as
costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge accounting.

PFRS % currently has no mandatory effective date. FFRS 9 may be applied before the completion of the
limited amendments to the classification and measurement model and impairment technology. The
Company will not adopt the standard until the completion of the amendments and the phases of the
project.

PFRS 9 iz effective for annual peniods beginning on or after Janvary 1, 20015, This mandatory adoplion
date was moved 1o January 1, 2018 when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards Counecil (FRSC). Such sdoption, however, is still for approval by the
Board of Accountancy {(BOA).

+ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreesent for Construction of Real Estare. The implementation of
the Philippine Interpretation is deferred until the final Review Standard is issued by 1ASB and after an
evaluation on the requirements and guidsnce in the standard vis-2-vis the prectices and regulations in the
Philippine real cstate industry is completed, This Philippine Interpretation covers accounting for revenus
and associated expenses by entitics that undertake the construction of real estate directly or through
subcontractors. This Philippine Inferpretation requires thal revenue on consinection of real estale be
recognized only upon completion, excepd when such contract qualifies a3 construction conlrac] 1o be
pecounted for under PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or invelves rendering of services in which case
revenue is recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the
construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are iransferred to the buyer ona
continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The imerpretation will have no
impact to the financial position or performance of the Company.

The following new standards and amendments issued by the IASE were already adopied by the FRSC
but are still for approval by the Board of Accountancy.

» PAS 19, Employee Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans: Emplavee Contributions (Amendments)

The amendments apply 1o contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans.
Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as reductions o
current service costs if they are linked to service or as parnt of the remeasurements of the net defined
benefit asset or liahility if they arc not linked to service. Contributions that are discretionary shall be
accounted for as reductions of current service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plans.
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, It is not expected
that this amendment would be relevant 1o the Company since it does not have a defined contribution plan
with contributions from employees and third parties.
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Annual Improvements fo PFRSs {2000-2012 cyele)

The annual improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary amendments to
the following standards:

» PAS 16, Praperty, Plant and Equipment: Revaluation Method — Proportionate Restatement of
Acennulared Depreciation and Amortization. The amendment clarifies that when an item of property,
plant and equipment is revalued, treatment shall be one of the following ways:

a. the gross carrying amount is restated in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying
amount, Accurnulated depreciation is the difference between the gross and the net carrying amount,

b. the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset while the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or afier July 1, 2014. They shall apply to all
revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after the date of the initial application of this
amendment and in the immediately preceding annual period. The amendment will not have a significant
impact on the Company™s financial position and performance.

» PAS 24, Relaied Party Disclosiures — Key Management Persennel The amendments clarify that the
definition of a *related pary® shall extend to include management entities or &8 member of {18 group that
renders key management personnel services to the entity. The amendments require also & separile
disclosure of the amount recognized as expense by an entity for the provision of key management
personnel services that are provided by a separale management entity. These amendments will take
effect on annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and shall be applied retrospectively, The
amendment will not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial position and performance.

» PAS 38, Intangible Asseis: Revaluation Method - Proporiionate Restatement of Accumlaed
Depreciation and Amortization. The amendment clarifies that when an intangible asset is revalued,
treatment shall be one of the following ways:

a. the gross carrying amount is restated in 2 manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying
amount. Accumulated amortization is the difference between the gross and the net carrying amount.

b. the accumulated amorization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset while the
met amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or afler July 1, 2014, They shall apply to all
revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after the date of the initial application of this
amendment and in the immediately preceding annual period. The amendment will not have a significant
impact on the Company”s financial position and performance.

» PFRE 2, Share-based Payment - Definivion of Vesting Condiions, The amendment provides a clearer
definition of “vesting condiifons ' by adding a separate definition for ‘performance condition” and
‘service condition”, The purpose of which is to consistently classify condilions relating to share-based
payment. This amendment shall be applied prospectively to share-based payment transactions with the
grant date on or after July 1, 2014, The amendment will not have a significant impact on the Company”s
financial position and performance.

* PFRS 3, Business Combinations — Accouniing for Contingent Consideration in a Busimess
Conbination

The amendrment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the sequisition dode is on
or after July 1, 2014, It clarifies that a contingent consideration that is not classified as squity is
subsequently measured at fair value through peofit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of PAS
39, Financial Instrumeris: Recagnition and Measurement. This amendment has no impact on the
Company’s financial posilion or performance.
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* PFRS B, Operating Segments — Aggregaiion of Operating Segments and Reconcllation of the Total of
the Reportable Segments ' Assets to the Entity ‘s Assets. These amendments require that an entity shall
disclose all the circumstances considenad in identifying the entity’s reporable segments upon
aggregation of the operating segments, The amendments also require a disclosure of reconciliation of the
total assets of the reportable segments to the entity's assets, These amendments are to take effect
prospectively on annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2004, The amendment will nol have a
significant impact on the Company s finencial position and performance.

Armmweal Tmprovements fo PFRSs (200 1-2013 Cycle)
The annual improvements to PFRSs (201 1-2013 cycle) contain non=urgent bul necessary amendments to
the following standards:

* PFRS 3, Business Combinmiions — Seope Exceprions for Joine Arvangements, The amendment clarifies
that the seope exceplion only applies to the financial statements of the joint venture or the joint opcration
itsell. The amendment is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied

prospectively. This amendment will not affect the Company”s financial position and performance.

* PFRS 13, Fair Falue Measurement - Porifolio Exception. Portfolio Exception as defined in FFRS 13
is o scope exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities,
The amendment clarifies that the portfiolio exception can be applied 1o all contracts whether or nof it
meets the definition of financial asset or financial lability as stated in PAS 32, The amendment has no
sipnificant impact on the Company”s financial position or performance.

* PAS 40, Investmens Propery. The purpose of the amendment is to state that in determining whether a
transaction is an acquisition of an investment party or whether it is an acquisition of & group of assets or
& business combination that includes investment property, judgement is also needed. This amendment
will not affect the Company’s financial position and performance.

Effective January 1, 2006

* PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarificarion of Acceprable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
(Amendments) The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a
pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumsiances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments
are nod expected to have any impact 1o the Company given that the Company has not used a revenue-
hased method to depreciate its non-current assets.

* PAS 16 and PAS 41 Agriculivre; Bearer Plants {Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the definition off
bearer plants. Uinder the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will no
longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After initial recognition, bearer plants
will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before maturity) and using either the cost model or
reviluation model (after maturity). The amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer
plants will remain in the scope of PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell, For government grants
related to bearer plants, PAS 200 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Aszistance will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2016, with early adopiion permitied. These amendments are not expected 1o have any
impact to the Company as the Company does nol have any bearer plants,

¢ PAS 27, Eguity Method in Separate Firancial Stafements (Amendments)

The amendments will allow entities 1o use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities already applying FFRS and
electing to change to the cquity method in its separate financial statements will have 1o apply that change
retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate financial

— — = —
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statements, they will be required to apply this method from the date of ransition to PFRS. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments will not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements,

= PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Bale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS 10 and
those in PAS 28 (20011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and ils
associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not), A partial gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constilute a business, even if these assets are
housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016. This amendment has no impaet on the Company’s financial position or performance.

* PFRS 11 .Joim Arrangements: Aecouniing for Acguisitions of Interests (Amendmenis). The
amendments 1o PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a
joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant
PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously
held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same
Joint operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11
to specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the
reporling entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initizl interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments
are not expected to have any impact 1o the Company®s financial stalements.

* PFRS 14, Regufaiory Deferral Aeconmts

PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-regulation, o
continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral account balances upon
its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral
BECOUNIS s separate ling items on the statement of financial position and present movements in these
account balances as separate lin ilems in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. The standard requires disclosures on the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity"s rate-
regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial stalements. PFRS 14 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after | January 2016. This will have no impact to the financial position
or performance of the Company,

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2012 - 2014 cycle)
Effective January 1, 2016
The following improvements are not expected to have material impact on the Company.

* PFRS 3, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Changes in Methods of
Lhzposal

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through sale to a
disposal through distribution to owners and viee-versa should not be considered 1o be a new plan of
disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no interruption of the
application of the requirements in PFRS $. The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal
method does not change the date of classification.

* PFRS 7, Financial Instruments; Disclosires — Servicing Coniracts

FFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred asset
that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that n servicing contract that includes a fee
ean constitute continuing involvernent in a financial asset. An entity must assess the natre of the fee
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and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required.
The amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute
continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not
required to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first
gpplies the amendments.

s PFRS 7, Applicability of the Anendinents fo PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Starennent
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of financial
assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report unless they
provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent annual report.

& PAS 19, Employee Benefits — regiomal marker issie regarding disconnt rale

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds
ks asseseed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, ruther than the country where
the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government bond rates must be used.

o PAS 34, Inferim Financial Reporting — disclosure of information elsewhere in the imterim financial
repori

The amendment is applicd retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures must either
be in the interirm financial statements or incorporated by eroas-reference between the interim financial
statements and wherever they arc included within the greater interim financial report (e.g. in the
management commentary of risk report)

Effective January 1, 2018

s PFRS 9, Financial fnstruments - Hedpe Aeconnting and Amendments fo PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and PAS 3%
{204 3 version)

PFRS % {2013 version) alrendy includes the third phase of the project 1o replace PAS 39 which pertains
1o hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge accounting model of PAS
39 with & more principles — based approach. Changes include replacing the rules — based hedge
effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the economic relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instruments, and the effect of credit risk on that economic relationship;
allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item, not only for financial items but also fior
non-financial items, provided that the risk component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable;
and allowing the time value of an option, the forward element of a forward controct and any foreign
currency basis spread to be excluded from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging
instrument and accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for
hedge accounting.

FFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of January 1,
2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the FRSC, The adoption of
the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA. The Company is currently assessing
the impact of sdopling this standard,

= PFRS 9, Financial Instrimants (2014 or fimal version)

In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was issued; PFRS 9 reflects all phases
of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective
application is required but comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous
versions of PFRS 9 Is permiited if the date of initial application Is before February 1, 2015. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.
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« [FRE 15, Revenne from Cortracts with Crstomers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five — step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects 1o be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
toacustomer, The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognizing revenue, The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all
curment revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application
is required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007 with early adoption permitted. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the *
required effective date once adopted locally.

v
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are temporary placements with maturity of
less than three (3) months which can be withdrawn anytime depending on the immediate cash
requirement of the Company

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Invesiment Contracts

Insurance premiums are recognized directly as liabilities, Revenue consists of fees deducted for policy
sdministration and surrender charges. Interest or changes in the unit prices eredited to the aceount
balunces and excess benefit claims incurred in the period are charged as expenses in the statements of
comprehensive income. The Company, however, has no investment confracis,

Deferved Policy Aequisivion Costs (RAC)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are deferred and charged to expense in proporiion o the premium revenue
recognized. Subsequently, these costs are amortized over the terms of the policies as premium is carmed
on a straight line basis using the 24" method over the life of the contract except for marine cargo where
commissions for the last two months of the year are recognized as expense the following vear.
Amaortization is charged against the statement of profit or loss. The unamortized acquisition costs arne
shown in the assets section of the statement of financial position. All other costs are recognized as
expense when incurred.

A review on impairment is performed at each end of the reporting period or more frequently when an
indication of impairment arises. The camrying value is written down to the recoverable amount and the
impaimment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss,

Liahility Adeguacy Test

At each financial position date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the
contract liabilities net of related DAC. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future
contractual cash flows and claims handling and adminisiration expenses, as well as investment income
from the assets backing such liabilities, are used, Any deficiency is immediately charged 1o profil or
loss indtially by writing off DAC and by subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising from
lizhility adequacy tesis (the unexpired risk provision).

Any DAC written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be reinstated.
Reinswrance Contracts Held
Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which it is compensated for losses on one

or more contracts issved by the Company and meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification
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requirements are classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under
which the contract holder is another insurer {inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts.
The benefits (o which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognized as
reinsurance assets, These assels consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or doe to reinsurers are measured consistently
with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance
pontracts and are recognized as an expanse when due,

Receivables and Payables related to Insurance Contracs and Tnvesiment Conlracts

Receivables and payables are recognized when due. These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers and insuranes contract holders,

IT there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognized that impairment loss in the
statements of comprehensive income. The Company gathers the objective evidence that an insurance
receivable is impaired using the same process adopted for loans and receivables. The impairment loss is
also calculated under the same method used for these financial assets.

Financial Assets

Financial assets include cash and other financial instruments. Financial asses, other than hedging
instruments, are classified imo the following catepories: financial assets ol fair valve through profit or
loss (FVPL), receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assels, Finoncial assets are assigned to the different categories by management on initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the invesiments were acquired. The designation of financial assets
is re-evaluated at every reporting date at which date a choice of classification or accounting ireatment is
available, subject to compliance with specific provisions of applicable accounting standards.

All financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All financial assets that are not classified at a fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair valee plus transaction costs.

The foregoing categories of financial instruments are more fully described below,

Financial FVPI
Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or boss if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term or if so designated by the management. Derivatives assets, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified as at fair value through profit or loss unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments,

Tnitial recognition and measuremeni
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value, Transactions costs
incurred for the acquisition of the financial assets are directly expensed outright.

Subsequent measirement

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets included in this category are measured at fir value
with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss, Financial assets originally designated as financial
asscts at fair value through profit or loss may not subsequently be reclassified.

The Company has no investment classified under this category.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable pavments and fixed maturities that
are not quoded in an active markel. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or shor=
term resale and are not classified as other financial assets held for rading, designated as AFS financial
asseis or securities at FVPL.
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Initial recognition and measirement

Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction cosls that are directly
atiributable 1o the acquisition or issuance of the financial asset, The fair value of the loan receivable at
initial recognition is normally the transaction price, meaning the amount of the loan granted.

Subsequent measwrement
After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method, allowances or reversals of allowances being made where necessary on remeasuring.

Imperivment of Financiol Assels

A loan and receivable is deemed impaired when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loan and receivables has been incurred. Gains and losses are recognized in the profil or loss when the
loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, and through the amortization process.

Loans and receivables includes cash and cash equivalents, premiums due from ceding companies,
reinsurance recoverable on losses, premiums receivable, commission receivable, premiums reserve
withheld by ceding companies, salvage recoverable and other receivables in the statement of financial
position,

Avpilable-for-Sale Investments

Financial assets of the Company inclede available-for-sale investments. AFS investments are those non-
derivative financial asscts that are designated as AFS or are not classificd in any of the three other
eategories. AFS investments include financial assets not quoted in an active market and are classified as
AFS when purchased and held indefinitely, but which the Company anticipates to sell in response to
liquidity requirements or in anticipation of changes in interest rates or other factors. Financial assets may
be designated under this category provided such are not held for trading.

Inirial recognition and measurerment

AFS investments are recognized initially at fair value, The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close
of business as at the date of financial position. AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measure are measured at cost less any
impairment losses at end of each reporting period.

Subsequent measurenent

Adfter initial recognition, changes in the fair value of AFS investments are recognized in equity, except
for the foreign exchange fluctuations on AFS debt securities and the related effective interest which are
taken directly to the statements of comprehensive income. These changes in fair values are recognized in
equity until the investment is sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity are
imcleded in the stalements of comprehensive incone,

Impaivment of Financial Asseis

The Company assesses at cach statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or maone events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred *loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the borrower or & group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest o principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in
the estimated fisture cash flows, such as chunges in amears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults,

In case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. When a
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decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in other
comprehensive income reserve account and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income reserve account is reclassified
from other comprehensive income reserve account 1o profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even
though the financial asset has not been derecognized. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
reclassified from other comprehensive income account to profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument are not reversed in profit or loss.
Subsequent increases in the fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income reserve account.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria ns
financinl nssets carried &1 amortized cost. Interest continues to be accrued at the original effective interest
rate on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is recorded as part of interest income in the profit or
loss. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increased and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the profit or loss,
the impairmen loss is reversed through the profit or loss,

Held-to-Maturity Investments

HTM investments include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturitics for which the Company’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Where the Company sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire
category would be tainted and classified as AFS invesiments.

Initial recogrition and measuremen

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recorded at fair value plus transactions costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial asset. The fair value is usually the actual
fransaction price on the transaction date,

Subsequer measurement

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method. In addition, if there is objective evidence that the investment has been impaired, the financial
assel is measured at the present value of estimated cash flows. Any changes to the carrying amount of
the investment are recognized in profit or loss,

Trpairment of Financiol Assets

If there is objective evidence that a financial asscis carried al amortized cost is impaired, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rale of the financial asset,

The camrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized under “asset impairment™ in the statement of comprehensive income. I, in a
subsequent periad, the amount of an impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
oecurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the statements of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset
does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date, I a futare write-off is later recovered, the
recovery 15 recognized in profit or loss,

Financial Rabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs, After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
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Chther Fiaancial Liahiltifes
This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for reding or not designated as at FVFL
upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

Al financial liabilities ane recognized initially at fair value of the consideration received less direaly
atiributable costs. After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, When liabilities are impaired or derecognized, any gain and losses are
recognized in the profit or loss.

Included in this category are the Company”s claims payables, premiums due o reinsurers, commission
payable, reserved for uneamed premiums, premiums reserve withheld for reinsurers and other payables
(except for tax liabilities).

The Company has no designated financial liability at FVYPL.

Derecognition o

Fimancial Assels

A financial asset (or, where applicable a pant of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

nsoets) is derecognized or removed from the Company's statements of financial position where:

# the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,

# the Company retains the right 1o receive cash flows from the asset, but hos assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a * pass-through” srmangement; o

# the Company has transferred its right to receive cash Mows from the asset and either {a) has transferred

mor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transfered nor

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has ransferred control of the asset.

W here the Company has transfierred its rights 1o receive cash fows from an asset end has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the rizks and revaards of the asset nor wransferred control of the
asset, the assed is recognized 1o the extent of the Company” s continuing involvement in the asses.
Centinuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the eriginal carrying amount of the assel and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Purchases and sales of invesiments are recognized or derecognized on trade date, the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the assel.  Ad initial measurement, financial instruments ans
measurcd equal to their fair value including transaction cosis, Transactions costs incwrred ata
subsequent date related 1o the transfier or disposal of a financial instrament are not included in the
subsequent measurement of the Rinancial instrurment, Such costs are only included in the statement of
comprehensive income when derecognition occurs, Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has
iramsferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

Fimancial Liabilities

Financinl liabilities are derecognized when and only when obligation under liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially difTerent terms, or the terms of an existing lighility are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss,

i
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the stalement of
financial condition if, and only if; there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention o seitle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and seitle the liability
simultansously.
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As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company is not off setting financial instruments in aceordance
with PAS 32 and does not have relevant offsetting arrangements. The Company is presenting its
financial assets and financial liabilities at gross amounts in the statement of financial position.

Other Investments
Other investments which include outstanding collateral loans, real estate acquired and the Company™s
omtribution to the Security Fund are stated at cost. These ane included in other non-current assets.

The Company assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for nonlife insurance contracts
when applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as revenue or expenses in
the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business. Taking into
account the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances
due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in 8 manner consistent with the related
reinsuranee contract,

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire
or when the contract is transfierred to another party.

The Company assesses at cach financial position date whether there is objective evidence that a
reinsurance contract is impaired. A reinsurance contract is impaired if, and oaly if:

«  here is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the
reinsurance assel, that the cedant may not receive all amounts due to it under the terms of the

contract; and
« the event has reliably measurable irmpact on the amounts that the cedant will receive from the
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment
loss. When assets are sold of retired, their cost, accumulated depreciation and any allowance for
irmpairment are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from the disposal is included
in the statements of profit or loss.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
taxes and any directly astributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use, Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to expense in the period the costs ane incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the
fisture economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an ftem of property and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional
cost of property and egqui povent.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Building 20 years
Building improvements 1-5 wvears
Leasehold and improvements 2-5 years

Office furniture and fxiures 1-10 years
Transportation equipment 2-5 years
Electronic Data Processing Machine 1-5 years

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the periods and
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattem of economic benefits from items of
property and equipmment,
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Impairment of Nonfinancial Azsets

Property and equipment and other non-current assets are reviewed for impairment when evenis or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable emount, the assets or cash-
generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts.

The estimated recoverable amount is the greater of an asset™s net selling price and value in use, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-
tax discount rale that reflects current markel assessments of the lime value of money and the risks
specific 1o the assel. For an assel that does nol generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment
loss is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

Feversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when that there is an indication that
the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased, The reversal is
recorded in the statements of comprehensive income. However, the increased carrying amount of an
asset due 1o reversal of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that it does not exceed the carrying
armount that would have been determined {net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years,

Derecognition of Nowfinaneinl Assers

An item of the property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the assets
{computed as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the year the assets is derecognized.

Share Capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets, [neremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds, nel of tax,

When the Company purchases the Company”s equity shares capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs {net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company's equity holders. Whene such shares are subsequently sold, reissued o
otherwise disposed of, any consideration received is included in equity attributable 1o the Company®s
equity holders, net of any direcily atiributable incremental ransaction costs and the relsted income tax
effects. .

The Company*s share capital includes common stocks and treasury stocks.

Retained earnings include all the accumulated earnings of the Company less dividends declared.

Regvenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be neliably messured. The following specific recognition criteria must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

(&)} Recognition and Measurement

Short=term Ineance Confracts
These contracts are casualty and property insuranee contracls.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of causing harm to third
partics as a result of their legitimate activities, Damages covered include both contractual and non-
contractual cvents.
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Property insurance contrcts mainly compensate the Company's customers for damage suffered 1o their
properties or fior the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commencial activities on their
premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the
insured properties in their business activities (business interruption cover).

Fremiums from short duration insuranee contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of contracts
using the 24th method. The portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired periods of the
policies as at the date of financial position are accounted for as Uneamed Premiums and presented in the
liability section of the statements of financial position, The related reinsurance premiums ceded that
pertained 1o the unexpired periods as at the date of financial position are accounted for as Ceded *
Reinsurance Premiums shown as part of assets in the statements of financial position. The net changes
in these accounts between financial position dates are either charged or eredited to income.

Commission income earned from short duration insurance contracts are recognized ns revenue over the
period of contracts using the 24" method except for marine cargo where the deferred reinsurance
commissions for the last two months of the year are considered eamed the following year, The portion of
the commissions that relates to the unexpired periods of the policies at the reporting date is accounted for
as deferred reinsurance commissions and lodged into commissions payable and presented in the
liabilities section of the staternent of financial position.

Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues using the effective interest method,

Other income includes gain on sale of stocks and investment income. Gain on sale is recognized when
gold, Recovery from impairment losses is recognized when collected.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payvment is established, Revenues from
dividends received and those from other sources are recognized when declared and earned regardless of
when received.

Foreign currencies denominated monetary transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the prevailing exchange rates at financial position dates. Exchange gains or losses arising from foreign
currency fransactions ane credited or charged directly to operations.

E R cE
Expenses are recognized in the ststements of profit or loss when decrease in future economic benefit
related to a decrease in asset or an increase in & liability has arisen that can be measured reliably,
Expenses are recognized in the stmement of profit or loss:

* on the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific items
income;

* on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected 1o
arise over several accounting periods and the association can only be broadly or indirectly detesmined;
or

* immediately when expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and 10 the extent thas,
furture economic benefits do not qualify or cease 1w qualify, for recognition in the statements of
financial position as an asset,

Benefits and Claims

Giross benefits and claims consists of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, which are based on the
loss adjuster estimates. It further includes internal and external claims handling costs that are directly
related 1o the processing and settlement of claims,

Insuramce claims are recorded on the basis of notification received.
Chher Underwriting Expenses

Other underwriting expense pertains to the costs incurred by the Company prior to the issuance of
policies to its policyholders, These costs include expenses for technical inspections, actuarial reviews
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and other work that is necessary 10 determine whether or not 1o accept the risks to be written. These cosis
are recognized as expense ns they are incurred.

Cremeral Expenses
General expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as they are incurred.

Comprehensive Income
The Company uses single statement of comprehensive income, in which it presents all items of income
and expense recognized in the period.

Leases

Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases,

The Comparny as Lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on another systematic basis, which is
miore representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assel are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which
they are incurréd.

Employee Benefits

. Retirement Cost
The Company's retirement plan is non-contributory and of the defined benefit type which provides a
retirement benefit equal 1o One-hallf month's salary for every year of credited service in accordance
with the Retirement Pay law {Republic Act Wo. T641). Benefits are paid in lump sum upon redirement
or separation in accordance with the terms of the plan. A The retirement cost is determined by
gpplying the Accrued Benefit Actuarial Cost Method taking into account the factors of invesiment,

monality, disability and salary projection rate. The fund is adminisiered by a duly appointed fund
trustee.

b. Short-term employee benefits
Wages, salaries, paid anrueal leave, sick leave, bonuses, social sscurity contribution, philhealth
contribution, pag-ibig contribution and non-monetary benefils are recognized as employee benefit expense
and accrusd when the sssociated services are rendered by the emplovess of the Company.,

e Profit-shaving and bomis plans
The Company recognizes @ lizhility and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that 1akes into consideration the prafit attributable 10 the company®s shareholders after certain
adjusiments. The Company recoegnizes a provision where contractually obliged or where there isa
past practice that has created 8 constructive obligation.

Current tax assets and lisbilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to (he taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacied or substantially enacled as at the date of financial position.

Drefierred taxes and liabilities are recognized for the future b consequences attributable to differences
between the financial reporting basis of assets and liahilitics and their related tax base. Deferred tax
assels and ligbilities are measured using the tax rates expecied to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expecied 1o be recovered or settled.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed as at the date of financial position and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow
the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized defierred income lax assels are reassessed as
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al the date of financial position and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset (o be recovered,

Deferred income tax assets and defierred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforoeable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same
taxcable entity and the same texation authority.

Eamings per Share
Basic eamings per share is caleulated by dividing net income by the weighted average numbser of |
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared,

Diluted eamings per share amounts ane calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during (he year plus the weighted average number of ordinury
shares outstanding that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potentinl ordinary shares
into ordinary shires,

Value h
Book value per share is calculated by dividing stockholders equity by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares puistanding during the year, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared.

Provisi
Provisions are recognized when present obligations will prabably lead to an outflow of cconomic
resources and they can be estimaled reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may siill be
uncertain, A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has
resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditere required 1o senle the present obligation, based on
the most reliable evidence available st the finencial position date, including the risks and uncertaintics
associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expectied 1o be received in the course of
setflement of the present obligation is recognized, if virally certain as a separate asset, not exceeding
the amount of the related provision. Where there are & number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. In addition, long-term provisions are discounted o their present values, where time value of
money is material,

Provisions are reviewed ol each Ginancial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

In thosc cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present obligations is
considered probable or remote, or the amount 10 be provided for cannot be measared reliably, no lability
is recognized in the financial statements.

Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are
considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial statements,

Contingent liabilities represent possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of non-occurrence of one or mone uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the
Company. They are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognized in the financinl statements but discloded when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable,

Subsequent Events

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company”s position at financial
pasition date {edjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.
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3 BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the camrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumplions are
kased on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actugl results may
differ from these estimales,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revisions to am:mr:ling
estimates are recognized in the peried in which the estimate is revised if the revision alfects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
perinds.

Judgments

Im the: process of applying the Company”s accounting pelicies, management has made judgments, apart
from those involving estimations that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial siatements:

Feir valwe measuremeni of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the staterment of Anancial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing
fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumplions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Revere Recogmition
The Company”s revenue recognition policies require use of estimates and assumptions that may affect
the reported amoaunts of revenue and receivables.

Dvermining Funciionad Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Company, the
functiongl currency of the Company has been determined to be the Philippine peso, The Philippine peso
is the cumrency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operales, It is the currency
that mainly influences the revenues and expenses of the Company,

Estimates

The key assumptions conceming the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty al the Rnancial
position date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Determinatton of Fair Valies of Finaociol dssets

Fair value determinations for financial assets are based generally on listed market prices or broker or
dealer price quotations, IT prices are not readily determinable or if liquidating the positions is reasonably
expecied to alfect the market prices, fair value is based on their intemal valuation models or
management’s estimate of amounts that could be realized under current market conditions, assuming an
orderly liquidation over a reasonable period of time. The use of assumptions could produce materially
different estimates of fair value,

The Uhtimare Liokility Avising from Claims made under Insurance Coniracts
The estimation of the ultimpte liability arising from claims made under insurance coniracts is the

Company*s most eritical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need (o be
considered in the estimate of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims,

Estimates have to be made for the expected ultimate cost of ¢laims reported at the reporting date. It can
take significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with certainty. The
primary technique adopled by management in estimating the cost of notified is that of using past claims



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

settlenent trends (o predict future claims settlement trends. At each end of the reporting period, prior
year claims estimated are assessed for adequacy and changes made are charged to provision, Claims are
not discounted for the time value of money,

The assumption underlying the estimation of the ¢laims provision is that a Company s past claims
development experience con be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claim
costs, Historical claims development is analyzed by sccident years bul can also be further anal veed by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually addressed by being reserved ot the
face value of loss adjuster’s estimates. Assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claims
development data on which the projections are based.

Estimted Allowance for Impalrmens Losses ow Recehables

The Company evaluates the possibility of losses that may arise out of the non-collection of receivahles
based on a cerain percentage of the owsianding balance of receivable and on an evaluation of the
current status of the account, However, as of December 31, 2014, no allowance for impalrment losses
wis provided for, as the accounts were deemed fully collectible,

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Company made different
Judgments or utilized different estimates, An increase in the allowanee for impairment losses on
receivables would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.

Estimated Useful Lives of Property and Equipmen

The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on the period
over which the assets are expected 1o be available for use and are updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence. It is possible
that fiture results of operations could be materially affecied by changes in these estimates brought about
by changes in the faclors mentioned.

Fimanciol Asseis and Liabilivies

The Company carries cerain Dinancial assels and lLiabilities a1 fair valee, which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgment. While significant components of fair value measurement were
determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign exchange rates, interest rate), the amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Company utilized different value methodology. Any changes in
fair valee of these financial assels and labilities would affect directly the statements of other
comprehensive income and statements of changes in equity. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
are disclosed in details in Note 27.

Asser fmpatrmeni

The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, The factors that the Company considers
important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

significant underperformance relative o the expected historical or projected future operating resulis;
significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;
and

»  significant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of gn assel exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fuir value less costs to sell. The fair value
less costs 1o sell is the amount oblainable from the zale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction while
value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected 1o arise from the continuing use
of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts ane estimated for
individual assels or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating umit to which the asset belongs.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use of the assets, the Company is required (o make estimates and assumplions that can
maoterially affect the financial statements.
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No indications of impairment were noted on property and equipment as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,

Retirement Benefit Oligation

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post-emplovment medical benefits and the present
value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valustions, An actusrial valuation invelves
making various assumplions that may differ from actual developments in the fture, These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality reles and fwlere pension increases,
Crue 1o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefil obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date.

The valuation results are based on the employee data as of valuation dates as provided by the Company,
The average discount rate was based on bootstrapped PDEX PDST-R2 rates al various tenors as of
December 29, 2004 and December 27, 2003, Assumed discount rate 15 used in the measurement of the
present value of the obligation, service and interest cost,

Deferred Tncome Tax Assels

The Company reviews the cerrying amounts of defermed income tax assets al each financial position date
and reduces deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available (o allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets o be utilized. However,
there s no assurance thal the Comipany will generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax assels to be utilized.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

2014 2013

Cash in banks P 24,545,149 P 28,370, 198

Shaoet-term financial assets 14,544,022 0,142 822
{ash on hand 1486435 281513

P 41,575,604 P 3?;?94:533

Cash in bank cams interest ol loating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term financial
assels are done for varying periods between one day and three months depending on the immediste cash
requirements of the Company, and earn interest ol the respective shor-term deposit rafes. Interest
income for the December 31, 2004 and 2013 amounted 1o P245,381 and P1,046,477, respectively.

2  REINSURANCE

The Company wilizes reinsurance agreements Lo minimize its exposure o large losses in all aspects of
its insurance business. Reinsurance permils recovery of & portion of losses from reinsurers, although, it
does not discharge the primary liability of the Company as direct insurer of the risk reinsured.

Preminnis Die From Ceding Compantes

This account represents balances due to the Company as a result of treaty and faculiative

from ceding companies. The Company®s premiums due from ceding companies amounts to P17,231,421
and P19,610,729 for the years 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Reinsurance Recoverable on Loszes

This account represents the amount recoverable from reinsurers under ireaty and faculiative agreemenis
as their share in paid and unpaid losses and loss adjusiment expenses net of salvage recoveries, The
Company®s reinsurance recoverable on losses amounts to PE2,839,253 and P53,800,541 for the years
2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Premiumz Receivable

This represents uncollecied premiums on direct business including those by general agents and insurance
brokers including taxes and other charges, provided these are properly segregated and the corresponding

liabilities are set up. The Company’s premiums receivable amounts to P29,469,079 and P19,473,421 for

the years 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Commission Recehable
This account represents uncollected commissions on treaty and faculiative agreements. The Company®s
commissions recelvable amounts to P11,193,584 and P10,597,507 for the years 2004 and 2013,

respectively,

Premiums Reserve Withkeld By Ceding Companies

This account pertains Lo a certain percentage of the total reinsurance premiums due within one year from
divie of retention being held by ceding companies. The Company’s premium reserve withheld by ceding
eompanies amounts to P11,120,255 and P10,931,276 for the years 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Salvage Recoverably

This gccount nepresents the estimated recoveries the Company may have from losses on policies issued.
The Company*s salvage recoverable amounts to F977,355 and F1,393,972 for the years 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Receivables
This represents receivable from non-insuranee transections, The Company™s receivables amounts to
P2,030,222 and P2,047,021 for the vears 2014 and 2013, respectively.

6. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This account consisis of:

2014 2003
Prepaid investment expenses P 8,787,591 P 10,060,947
Accrued investment income 2877220 2,749,112
Docusmeenary stamps 1ax receivable 3,194,908 2,257,662
Motes receivable 376,170 493 885
Prepaid expenses - 10,026
Fire service tax receivable 198,926 186,962
P 15434815 P 15,849,594
7. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

This account consists of;
2014 2013
Treasury bills P 13,500,000 P 40,000,000
Treasury bonds 159,850,720 158,958,720
Treasury notes 27,103,000 27,103,000

¥ 200,453,720 P 22606L720
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Held-io-maturity financial assets of the Company carry effective inlerest rates as follows:

2014 2013
Less than one year 430-8.13 4.30-8.13
Muore than year 638 - 5.10 6.38 - 9,10

The movement in held-to-maturity financiol asseis is summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Al Tamuary 1 P 226,061,720 P 239,804,970
Additions EO2,000 2
Maturitics (26, 500,004) (13,743,250
Al December 31 P 2W),455,720 P Iﬁﬂﬁh'ﬂiﬂ

Al each reporting date, the Company performs evaluations of the impairment of held-to-maturity
financial assets. The Management determines whether it intends to sell or If it is more likely than not that
it will be required to sell impaired financial assets. The Management considers current and forecasted
liquidity requirement, regulatory and capiial requirements and securities portfolic management. For all
impaired HTM financial assets for which there was no intent or expected requirement to sell, the
evaluation considers all available evidence to assess whether it is likely the amortized cost value will be
recovered,

B AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale investments which consist of listed'unlisted equity shares which are measured at fiir
marke! valie und af cost are as follows:

a) Available-for-sale-imvestiments which consist of listed equity shares which ane measured st fair
market value are as follows:

2014 Mo, ol livestencsd al Imvestment Unrealoed Deefimrred
Shaes Ilarkei ¥ nlue ai Cosi galn {loss) R
Equity shares
Aynia Corpoention. Préfered B 80,000 P oS0EO000 P 40000000 F 80,000 F 40
Gilabe Prefered Sharos 40,000 20,080, 000 20,000,000 E0,000 4
Mational Reirsssce Corposabion 7,553 0040 7,095, 104 13,684 Q87 (4,485 BET) (32429
Paper Indussrial Corporation g - 3820 {3,830} {14
Philippine Long Destance and
Telecommunication Compasy 114 331,284 - 331,284 1657
PLIT Series Prefamed &6 - 56, T00 {6, 100 {33)
Bank of the Philippine slands RO 168 ™. 536,535 19,832,143 54,704, 352 T 52
Petron Perpenml Prefermad 81,060 BAS5 508 £421. 290 MIES 171
San Miguel Corprastion-
Prefereed Series A 411,800 30,032,080 A, RES D00 247080 1,235
—San Migue Purebods Preftared 8,000 £072,000 8,024,000 28,000 240
F 159 386,507 P 140917, P 48 7 P 344
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2013 Ho, of Levesimend al knestmeni Unrealized Deferred
Shares Mfariel Vaboo L] pain {lss) |nEs.
Eguity sfoares
Ayala Corporation- Prefened B 80,000 P o41680000 P 40000000 B 1,480,000 P oEAD
Watiosal R rinsarance Corpomtian 7,599,000 10 BTE &40 13,684 85T [, B05, 347) 14,003)
Paper Industrisl Corporation TET : Lt e {35200 (1%
Philippine Long Destance and
Telecommunication Company 114 303,974 - 3,924 1520
PFLDT Serics Prefemed 6,670 - == L] {1HE, POy K )]
Hask of the Philippine Tslands T 605 61,469,075 14,737,715 46,851 360 134,307
Petron Perpetal Preferssd 50,000 550,000 5,000,000 450,000 2250
San Miguel Corpasation-
Preferred Scries A l1l.li'J-ﬂI 3R 5 30 BRS040 473 570 2368
—Siam Migned Purcliods Prefirred £.324,000 5,024,000 304,000 1,520

P Iﬂéﬂ;ﬂﬂ ]I.'..“-ltﬂ'! 223 P 47195987 P 135

by Available-for-sale-investments which consist of proprictary share and unquoted equily shares

measured at cost.
2014 2013
FProprieiary shares
Wack-wack Golf Club F 15,000,000 P15 000,000
Sta. Elena Club 1,750,000 1,750,000
Makati Sports Club 35,000 35,000
Unicgraoted equity shares
Acoje Mining 18425 28,425
Wuclear Insurance Pool, Inc. 10,0040 10,000
Phil. Machinery Mgmnt. Services 20,000 20,000
PP 5,447 5,447
P 16 2 P 16,848,872
The movement in this account is summarized as fiollows:
2014 2013
Al Jonuary | P 176,447,081 P 169,545,521
Additions 18515648 A0, (M0, DT
Disposition - (5.624,366)
Fair value changes 1,772,650 (27,474,074)
P 206,735,379 P 176,447,081

In cvaluating inpairment of available-for-sale Mnancial assets they consider a number of factors
intluding, but not limited to, the length of time and extent (o which the fair value kas been less than cost,
the financial condition and near term prospeets of the issuer, and management”s ability and intent to hold
the securities until fair value recovers. Based on the resulis of the evaluation, as of December 31, 2014
unrealized losses on some AFS ane temporary.
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9. PROPERTY AND EQUIFMENT

Movements in the property and equipment account in 2014 follow:

“Bulidiag asd Frmiture, Electronic Data Lemsehaid
Missicling Fiaimres and Tressspariatios Faoeanizg ]
=n—h L W bt Taial
o
Begning blmees P 16,0022 P LEE034 F RIERBEY P LT F 1a0,800 P XA
Reziremers - . (3065300} . - (148,341}
Additions Al 40 205, TH) P 178,556 171864 _LIBAT
ol L= b B L] ENE R LESELIE 411863 EETET]
Arus.
Begirnieg bilbrien LERTE R 1,507,743 EETIRE L OS5 000 FREILE D
[t L
amotizaton ML 1Y% EILE] Ll kD) 5858 1,600 857
R fprwen| = . Lt L] LE . ALEESE]
o [CNET o I~ i, ] LrN38 3585 AR
Piet Bosk Vales r MESI P MieE F LTETME P L2 P K108 Fa,238 19
Movements in the property and equipment account in 2003 follow
Balldng and Furndees, Eleciremic Duts Lranbald
Euldmg Finrares mad Tramiperistisn Preoew lng and
Iy wryments Eeijraicet Equipmes L ] B
g
Bq;!uir‘hl.mn r LLAL S L Lssnss P XL INES I TRigEn T . F 2450652
Adbrions . 1¥3,53% 1AEL187 1,714,988 240,000 143498
Adusmoet 2 — e ] = L Ll
Teisl 15,100,214 EAE0A5E CRECTTT 1307661 e EELE e )
Ascom Dirpreciation
Beginaing balmes 15,18%, T2 LT 563 3,148,558 LT - LTI
Deamcition sl
arsnti ralion TIOANS 100,15 1088047 PR &4 500 L4357
] S e fh0% 136} 3 = .5 ]
Tl TR 507,753 EXTTNL] W7 48080 FEETEE T
Sot Back Yalur F 182,508 P L I3 P 1,608,567 P 13000 P 856,847
The total cost of fully depreciated property and equipment which are still in use amounted to P4,664,723
and P4,213,295 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
10, OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
This account consists of:
2014 2013
Feal estate acquired PF279.974 P2T9.974
Defernad charges-MCIT FH4,409 401,747
Diepoaits 243,500 164,568
Taxes fund 26 W60 148,411
Verification fand 134372 ]
Security fund 17,902 17,5901
Service fee sl e 29,007
F 1,766,517 1,131,608
11. CLAIMS PAYABLES

This account comprises of the total amount of losses and claims due and payable to policyholders and
other claimants. Also included in this account are losses and claims due and payable 1o reinsurers under

treaty and faculiative agreements.
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13.

14,

15

The Company”s claims payable amounts to P73,238,687 and P61,816,763 for the years 2014 and 2013,
reapectively,

Helasurers” Claisrg payable  Feinguien'
share of anil ungamial shise of
(laims pajabile liabiliics Nt 2004 premiums limhililies Nea 1013
Cliime payible sepored
and lods sdjustment
“w F THIME 8T P &5, 567 540 P 348707 P &1 El& TN F 3510600 F MT0TH

FREMIUM DUE TO REINSURERS

This represents all the reinsurance premium payable by the Company to all its treaty and facultative

reinsurers.

The Company”s premiums dse o reinsurers amounts o F58,635,303 and P54,919,797 for the years 2014
and 2013, respectively,

COMMISSION PAYABLE

Commission payable pertains to amount payable to agents, brokers and general agents for business
underwritten by them or to ceding companies upon business aceepted from them.

The Company”s commission payible amounts o P28,208,670 and P21,050,439 for the years 2014 and
20013, respectively.
RESERVE FOR UNEARNED PREMIUM

The Company adopts the 24™ method of recognizing premiums revenue and accounting for the portion
of premiums written relating fo the unexpired periods of the policies and unearned premiums,

A comparison of reserve for uneamed premiums computed using this method and the stalutory rate
fiollows:

014 k]

Reserve using 24th method F 51565747 P 42981812
Reserve using statuory rate 40% 47,662,260 19,566,253
F 3 87 F 34153559

FREMIUM RESERVE WITHHELD FOR REINSURERS

Included in this amount is the portion of the reinsurance premiums ceded to insurers, which was
withheld by the Company in accordance with treaty agreement and / or laws, rules and regulations.

The Company's premiums reserve withheld for reinsurers amounts to P2,577,220 and P35,202 430 for the
years 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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7.

18.

FAYABLES

Obligations of the Company arising from non-insurance and non-reinsurance transactions are lodged in
this sccount,

The Company"s payables amounts to P2,927,867 and P884,643 for the years 2014 and 2013,
reapectively,

OTHER LIABILITIES
This account consists of
2014 FITEN

Bonus payahle F 1841830 Fo4383,430
Taxes payable 1,730,956 2,183,257
Credits io clent 1,281 840 1,630,653
Documentary stamps tax payable 2,117,986 1,979,071
Deposits 901 476 1,719,201
Uneearmed bomndl diseount 375487 405 7
5358, Pag-ibig and Philhealth payables 137019 =
Dividends payable 55,513 55,523
Service foes payable 50,711 -
Providznt fund payable 4350 4,350
Oihers 8,356 6,862
= Fi IE& P 13,568,344

RETIREMENT RENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Company has a retirement plan covering all its qualified employees. The plan is contributory and
the retirement cost is determined by applying the Accrued Benefit Actuarial Cost Method iaking into
account the factors of investment, mortality, disability and salary projection rate. The fund is
administered by a duly appointed fund trusiee.

The above mentioned retirements plan falls under the defined benefit plan that defines an amount af
pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation,

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation is summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Present value of obligation, January 1 P 12,247,118 P 11366416
Current service cost 847,154 £26,907
Inberest cost 587,862 01,074
Actusarial (gain) boss (91,959) {237.675)

Present value of obligation, December 31 P 13,590,177 P 12,247,118
_—
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The movement in pension assets 1s summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Fair value of pension assets, January | P 19,641,254 F 20,343,336
Expecied return on pension assets 142,780 1,057,853
Actuarial gnin (loss) {1,206,095) (1,759, 935)
Fair velue of pension December 31 I 19,377,939 P 19,641,254

Asset recognized in the statements of financial position is as follows:

20014 20013

Present value of obligation P 13,590,177 P12.247,118
Fair value of pension assels 19,377,939 19,641,254
Unfunded obligation {5,787,762) (7,394,136)
Asset ceiling 523,895 -
Retirement benefit obligation (asset) P (4,963,867) P (7,394,136)
Expenses recognized in the statements of profit or loss:

2014 2003
Current service cost P B4T156 P 526,907
Net inferest cost (354,918) (466,778
=l'~r..;.'=l.ir'|=rt|\:|:|l1::'a:p¢|1.'aan: P 492,238 F EUI!IE

Expenses recognized in the statements of other comprehensive income are ns follow:

2014 2013
Actuarial gain (boss) on obligation [ (91,959) P 237679
Remeasurement gain' loss)- plan asset 1,206,095 {1,750.935)
Remeasurcment gainloss) - changes in the

effedl of nssel ceil B13895 -

Actuarial gain (loss) recognized during ihe year F__1,938.031 I R[]
The cumulative amound of actuarial gains and (losses) charged to remeasurement gains are as follow:

2014 2013
Remeasurement gain, beginning P 575136 P 7274304

Actuarial gain (loss) recognized during the vear (1,938,031 ) 1,532 256
T AU gain, ending 3 328%1117 F 3.5L108

Moverment in met assel is summarized below:

2014 2013
Beginning net asset P {7,394,136) P {8,976,520)
Expense recognized, profit or loss 492,238 60,128
Remeasurement giin 1,938,031 1,522 256

Closing nel assel P (4,963,867 P (7,394,136)
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The principal assumptions used in determining pensions for the Company are as follow:

2014 2013
Discount rale 4.54% 4 800
Salary increasc rate 6.00%s G.00%

The expected return on pension assets was determined by considering the expecied returns available on
the assels undetlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments arc
based on gross redemption yields as of the balance sheet date, Expected returns on equity invesiments
reflect long-tenn real rates of return experienced in the respective markets,

Assumptions regarding future mortality and disability experience are based on published statistic
generally used for local actuarial valuation purposes.

Actual return on plan assefs:

— 2014 2013
Expected return on plan asscts P 942,780 P 1,057,853
Actuarial gain {|oss) (1.206,095) 11,759,935)
Actual rctl_lnmEn.t'ruu aascls P EHEISI P Ezﬂliﬂ'ﬂ!

Thve sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Tmpact on defined benefit obigation

4 2013
Tncrease in Decrense in Increase in Decrease in
asswmptien assumption assumpLion assumpdion
Discount raie B.60% 0LB0% 5.30% 4.30%
Salary growih rate 7.90% 1.30% 4.80% 4.80%

Each sensitivity analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was prepared by remeasuring the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date after first adjusting one of the current assumptions
according to the applicable sensitivity increment or decrement (based on changes in the relevant
assumption that were reasonably possible at the valuation date) while all the other assumptions remained
unchanged. The corresponding change in the defined benefit obligation was expressed s a percentage
change from the base defined benefit obligation.

It should also be noted that the changes assumed to be reasonably possible at the valuation date are open
to subjectivity, and do not consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than those asstmed
may be deemed 1o be more reasonable.

Retirement trust fund for December 31, 2014 is comprised of the following:

2014

Cush and cash equivalents 0.00% [ 153
Equity instruments 0.01% 1,786
Debt instruments 41.08% 7,960,457
Unit Investment Trust Funds 40.84% T, 913,950
Mutueal Funds 1.74% 1,499,852
Other (Market Gains/Losses, Acerwed Receivables, etc) 10.33% 001,741

1% F19,377,939

M
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Retirement trust fund for December 31, 2013 is comprised of the following:

2013
Cash and cash equivalents 0% P 255
Equity instrumenis % 19,655,348
Dl instruments 1% (18,349)

100% P19,641,254

_=:—#ﬁ

The retirement trust fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using the mark-to-market
valsation, While no significant changes in asset allocation are expected in the next financial year, the
plan trustee can make changes any time.

The Company has no specific matching strategy between the retirement fund assets and the defined
benefit liabilities under the plan.

The Company expects not to contribute to the plan in 2013,
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is as follow:

Years
Financial year
2014 .10
The Company”s expected future benefits payments arc as follow:
Amouni
Financial year
2015 P 6,613,405
2016 861,293
2017 .
2018 4,508,359
2019 S68.115
2020-2024 - 4,206,130
The distribution of eligible members as of December 31, 2014 is as follows:
Male Female Combined
Murmber of lives coverad 14.00 30,00 44.00
Average age in years 49,40 41.40 43.90
Average years of past service 13.10 12.50 12.70

Uinnsual or Significans Risks fo wiich the Redrement Plan Exposes the Compary

There are no unusual or significant risks 1o which the plan exposes the Company. However, in the event
a benefit claim arises under the relirement plan and the fund is not sufficient to pay the benefit, the
unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be due and payable from the Company to the fund.

Plan Amendments, Curtailment, or Settlements
There was no plan amendment, curtailment, or settlement recognized for the financial year ended

December 31, 2004,
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19. SHARE CAFITAL

This account consists of

014 2013
Par value - 100 per share 2,500,000 shares 3,500,000 shares
e e L M

The Company has one hundred thirty four (134) shareholders each owning 100 or more shares of the
Company’s share capital as at financial position date.

Treasury Stocks

The Company”s future camings are restricted from the payment of dividends to the extent of P76 886
representing treasury shares for 2014 and 2013,

. RETAINED EARNINGS

Declaration of Cash Dividend
On April 1, 2013, the Board of Directors declared & cash dividend amounting 1o P5,000,000 distribuizble
to stockholders of record as of Aprl 1, 2013, payable on April 30, 2013,

On October 25, 2013, the Company declared a cash dividend amounting to P5,000,000 distributable to
stockholders of record as of October 23, 2013, payable on Movember 25, 2013,

Prior period adinsiments

For the year Diecember 31, 2013, this account consists of adjusiments on previously recorded investment
expense and tax setilements for prior years. As a result, the Company®s retained earnings, prepaid
expense and cash decreased by 1,113,051, P465,342 and P647T, 709, respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one of the parties has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subjected to common control or commeon
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities,

Dietails of key management compensation and directors’ remuneration follow:

2014 203

Key management compensation
Salaries and other short-term benefis P 3,250,853 P 3254302
Directors’ renmeration 1,776,054 1,972,960
P 7 P 3237262

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no sale and purchase of insurance and investment
contracts, receivables, payables and loans to key management personnel.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no services rendered and non-interest / interest bearing
advances o / from associates and other related parties.
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12, UNDERWRITING INCOME AND EXPENSES

This account consists of:
014 13
UNDERWRITING INCOME
Diieet presn bums-net P 114862442 P 100,756,742
Add: Premiums pssumed 17510425 30,149,042
(3r0as premiums [FEELTE T 130,905,784
Less: Fremiums cedsd 1 11 3l 151
Net premiwms retained T, [ 15,63
Less: Premiams reserve for the 51,565,747 42981 E12
(iross premium on mel retained 67531, 10% $5.933 521
Add: Premiums releazed lrom reserve 42,981,812 40,533 481
Premiums earmed 110,502,521 0,469,302
Commissions eamed 3 43052
Total l.u'li-_'rwr'l!i.rli monme I" 116,706,203 P 103,015,234
UNDERWRITING EXPENSES
Agenis' commission snd experses P 35.048,132 P 30,019,328
Claims, losses paid snd adjustment expenses 26635550 32666827
[msmramnce gxpense 11.553,262 21,242 914
Total underwriting expenses B3,136,953 3,920,069
MNET UNDERWHRITING INCONE PH_E,]SII P 19086, 165
23, INVESTMENT INCOME
This account consists of;
4 2013
Income from investments in securitics P 11,970,105 P 14,284 847
Inpome from savings and time deposits 245,381 1,046,477
P12l F 13,331,344

14, OTHER IMRECT COSTS AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPFENSES

{nher direct costs consist of:

2014 2013
Salarics and wages P 9,206,786 F 8,381,805
(Hficers” and employess benefits 2,525,141 2,687,731
Professional fees 68,846 372,494
Taxes and Hoenses £45,620 353,781
Communication and postage 544,000 519,769
Printing, stationery and supgplies 429,903 282,841
Repairs and maintenanee 1M.018 513,669

P 14,694,914 P 13,112,090
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General administrative expenses consist of:

2014 2003

Salaries and wages P 3,945,765 P 3592202
Deprecistion and amortization (Mote 9) 1,611,927 2324257
Officers’ and employees benefits 1,082,460 1,151,885
Light and water 997 330 1,002,034
Fental expenses 902,057 702,416
Frofessional fees B8, 845 372,495
Transportation and travel 67I3TH 573,825
Communication and pastage 544,001 519,770
Direciors’ fiees and allowances 484,000 500,500
Representation and enteriamament 247,585 423,100
Printing, stationery and supplies 184,244 121,217
Repairs and mainienancs 117,436 20,143
Insurance D604 114,501
Inferest 043,589 134,709
Donations and contributions 21,500 513,000
Miscellancous expenses 5,058,564 7,068,538
F I?&Tﬂ'ﬁ P 19,335,592

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, miscellaneous expenses pertains to the following:

2004 2003
Advertising and promotions 23,326 65,756
Bank service charges 57,775 54, 060
Association and pool dues TRE367 615,506
Service fee 1,694,804 1,104,550
ARENCY EXPENSES 5,527,202 5,218 957
I 8,088,564 P ?Iﬂ'ﬁﬁlﬂ-ﬂ
15, BENEFIT FROM INCOME TAX
This aceount consists of
2014 2013
Currenl
Corporate income tax P(939.597) P (5.375,191)

Deferred 114,518 61,259
— FL0%,115) T G3 i&%az‘!

The reconcilistion between the corporate income tax and income tax afler applying the statutory tax rate
on income tax follows:

2014 2013
Statwtory income tax Fo4.831,111 P 7,791,832
Income tax eflect on:
Tax exempt income (3,591,031} (4285450
Income subject to lower tax rates {T3,614) (313,943)
Income not subject to Lax (2,093,287) (8.A4%0,464)
Temporary diffierences (12,776} (80,162)

P (939,597) P (5375,190)
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Under Republic Act No, 9337 - [ncome tax amendments, the corporate income tax rate applicable from
January | 1o October 31, 20035 of 32% in 2005 was increased to 35% elfective Movember 1, 2005,
decreasing o 30% effective on January 1, 2009, Because of the change in the corporate income tax
rate, the allowable deduction for interest expense in Section 34(B) 1) is reduced by 42% (from 38%) of

imterest income subject to final tax and 33% (from 42%) upon the
rate on January 1, 2004,

The Company's deferred tax asset (liability) consists of:

effectivity of the 30% corporate tax

2014 2013
Deferred tax assels:
Met operating loss carry over (NOLOO) r 7495034 P 6,555,437
Deferred tax liabiliiy:
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (34,258) (114,506)
Remeasurement gain (1,144,232) (1,725,641)
Net unrealized gain on AFS (Z44.843) (235, 980)
F 6071701 P 4,479,310
The movements in the deferred income tax account are summarized as follow:
; . Unrealized gain
NOLCO mﬂfﬁﬂ"‘ orlossen  lomemuement g
- FOREX g
A fanuary 1, 3013 P LITRXMa P (373,363 P 81271 P (2,1E2,318) F (1,235348)
Charge io profil or loss 537819 - (175.777) - 5,202,414
Charged 1o other ,
compeehensive income N - 137,383 L E 456,677 504,060
Al December 31, 2013 P 6555437 (235, 950) {114 506) {1,725641) P I,-Iiﬁ,ill:l
Charge to prodit or boss 939 597 Ri,245 1,019,845
Chiarged to other
comprehensive income {8,863} SR1,409 STE 546
Al December 31, 2014 P 7495034 P (244843) P (34258) P (1,144232) P_6070,701
6. EARNINGS PER SHARE AND BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
The computation of basic/diluted earnings per share is computed as follows:
014 2013
Met income PIT15781% P 31,289,705
Divided by custanding shares 2,500,000 2,500,000
P (%71 | 12,52

There were no potential dilutive shares in 2014 and 2013,
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a7

The computation of book value per sharc is computed as follows:

20id 2013

Eaquity P 409 826424 P 392261440
Divided by oustanding shares 2,500,000 2,500,000
P 163,93 P 156,90

_——  _-__G_{_——

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND OBJECTIVES

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. This section summarizes these risks and the
way the Company manages them.

Tnswrance Risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event oceurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is
random and therefore unprediciable,

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and
provisioning, the principal risk that the Compeny faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are
random and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
level established using statistical technigues.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to
be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance
underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks scoepted and within each of these
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected
oulcome.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of
risk, geographical location and type of industry covered.

Property Insuramce Confracis Risk

For property insurance coniracts, climatic changes give rise to more frequent and severe extreme
weather events and their consequences. For certain contracts, the Company has also limited the number
of claims that can be paid in any policy year or introduced & maximum amount payable for claims in any
policy year,

The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles
and reject fraudulent claims. These contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial
replacement value of the properties and contents insured, and claim payment limits are al wirys included
1 cap the amount payable on occurrence of the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of
replacement or indemnity for contents and time taken to restant operations for business interruption are
the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies.

Cagualty lrnrurance Risk

Claims on casually contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all
insured events that occurred during the term of the contract, even IT the loss is discovered after the end of
the contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and a larger element
of the claims provision relates to incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). There are several variables
that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent
risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract holders and the risk management
procedures they adopted,



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Heinsurance Kisk

In the normal course of business, the Company limits the amount of loss on any one policy by reinsuring
certain Jevels of risk with other insurers. In addition, the Company accepts reinsurance from other
reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded docs not discharge the Company’s lability as the primary insurer. Failure
of reinsurers to konor their obligations could result in losses to the Company; consequently, allowances
are cstablished for amounts deemed uncollectible, In order to minimize losses from reinsurer insolvency,
the Company monitors the concentration of credit risk both geographically and with any one reinsurer.
In addition, the Company selects reinsurers with high credit ratings. The effect of reinsurance on
premium income follows:

2014 __2013
Direct premium income F 114 862442 P 100,756,742
Reinsurance pesumed 17,520,425 30,149,042
Reinsurance ceded {23.305,011) (31,990,151}

P 119,086,856 P 98 915,633

Financial Risks

‘The significant risks related to financial instruments ane credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
{currency and interest rate). The following sections described how the Company manages each of the
risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk thal a parly 1o & financial instrument will cause a financial loss 1o the Company by
failing to honor its obligation to the Company. Credit risks are primarily associated with invested assets
and reinsurance counter parties. The Company mitigates credit risk through detailed credit and
underwriting policies and comprehensive due diligence and credit analyses.

“The Company's maximum credit exposure related to financial instruments is summarized in the
fiollowing table.

2014 2013
(in Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents P 39,089 P 37,513
Premiums due from ceding companies 17,231 19,611
Reinsurance récoverable on losses B1.839 53,30
Premiums receivable 29,469 19,473
Commissions receivable 11,194 10,598
Premiums reserve withheld by ceding companies 11,120 10,931
Receivables 2,030 2047
Salvige recoverable 977 1,394
Held-to-maturity financial assets 200,454 226,062
Available-for-sale financial assets 26,735 176,447
P 601,138 P 357,877

ﬁ
The Company has assessed the credit quality of the following financial assets:

# The credit sk for cash in bank is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable entities
with high quality external credit ratings. The credit quality of this financial asset is therefore
considered to be high grade. For the determination of credit risk, cash included in the analysis above
do not include cash on hand amounting 1o P2,486,435 and P281,513 for the year 2014 and 2013,
respectively,



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

« The Company"s premiums and other receivables are actively monitosed to avoid significant
concentrations of credit risk.

s of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the aging analysis of the Company®s receivables is as follows:

Meither Pust Due 2004
& Mor Impaired Past Dus Bui
Class A Clus B ClassC Mot Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents P 393,089,171 - P 30171
Preminns
Recaivible 18,876,692 3512064 6,193,187 837,136 20,460,070
[haz fram ceding companiss IR1,675 711528 IE,122.219 - 17,231 422
Reserve withheld by
ceding companics - - 11,120,255 - 11,020,255
Reimiurance rocoverable
o hissEs 21,141,160 14,176,535 47 521 558 a B2 BEDIL3
Commission receivable 3,724,190 152,995 731650 . 11,193,584
Snhape recoverabbe = - . G135 OFT A58
Reoeivables - 28N 2,007 351 2 030,213
Financial assets
Held-io-maburity - - ;0,453,720 200,453,720
Available-for-2ale - - 05,735,379 e I0G,TISITH
P E32IZRER P 1 1893 P 497470068 F 1 451 G, 1 38440
Mewher Past Due
_ Hor Impaired Past Dug But o
Class A Class B Qs C Mod bmpaired Total
Cash amd cash equivalents P 37513 000 o = s i 37,513,020
Premiums
Receivable 12915132 4 172573 1,717 058 068,358 19,473,421
Dhae from ceding companies . 2,739,503 16,851,216 - 19,500,729
Reserve withheld by
ceding companies - 1,353 548 GATI TR . 10,631,276
Reinswrance receverahle
on losses 74,526 53,726,018 - 53,500,541
Commission receivable T21 688 6,045.955 3226854 - 10,597 507
Salvage recaverable - - . 1,393972 1,393,972
Hexeivables . 13,034 LR RES | 930 869 - 2,047,021
Fimancial nssets
Held-te-mraturity - - 226,061 720 - L6061, 720
Available-for-sale . . 1 76,447 081 - 176,447,081
P OSLIGRETY P 14,103,533 P 489547551 P M P SST.8T6,288

Credit Quality - In monitoring and controlling eredit extended 10 counterparty, the Company adopis a
comprehensive credit rating system based on financial and non-financial assessments of 118 borrowers.
Financial factors being considered comprised of the financial standing of the borrower while the non-
financial aspects include but not limited to the assessment of the borrowers nature of business, industry
background, payment habit and both present and potential business dealings with the Company.

Class A “High Grade” are accoumts with strong financial capacity and business performance and with
the lowest defoult risk.

Class B “Moderate Grade™ refer to accounts of satisfactory financial capability and eredit standing but
with some elements of risk where certain measure of control is necessary in order to mitigate risk of
default.
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Class C “Low Grade™ refer (o accounis which are collecied on their due dates provided that the
Company made a persistent effort to collect them,

Ligwichity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able 1o fund all cash outflow commitments as they
fall due. The Company generally maintaing a conservative liquidity position that excesds all the
linhilities payable on demand. The Company invests in various types of assets with a view of matching
them with its liabilities of various durations. To strengthen its liquidity further, the Company actively
manages and monilors its capital and assets levels, diversification and credit quality of it investments
and cash forecasts and actual amounts against established targets. The Company also maintains liquidily
contingency plans for the management of liquidity in the event of a liquidity crisis.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Companies financial lighilities as of December
31, 2014 and 2013.

Current Mon-curment 2014
Within 6o 12 lins
6 monihs menths years Jonl
Payables P 2927867 P - - P 2527867
Clakms payable 3507147 2A16210 39,505,321 73,138,687
Premiums
Dhue o rednsaners 5B, 635303 - - SHERE B0
Reserve for umesmesd . - 51,565 747 51,565,747
Reserve withheld
for reimsuners 251720 = - 1577220
Commizsion payable . 28,208,670 - 18,208,670
Ohilvers fexclualimg oy Habilities) - 7,561 438 - 7561 438
P D5,647.537 P 3K, 1B5,327 F  G0BE]D6E  II4,T14932
Current Monecumment 2003
Within 6o 12 It 5§
& mioriths mionths VEars Total
Payahles P - F - F R4 P ERd 643
Claims payahle 13461477 2012929 36,342,357 a1 816,763
Premiuns
D w0 reinsurers 54,519,797 - - 54,915,797
Reserve for umcarned * - - 42,581 812 42,981,812
Reserve withheld
for reinsurers - - 5,202,430 5,202 430
Commission payable . 21,050,439 - 21,050,439
Dihers (pxchuding w labilinies) - S 423423 - B 425,425
P OTEIELIT P 32488793 P 8254101242 P 196280309
Foreign Currency Risk

The Company’s foreign currency risk results primarily from movement of the Philippine Peso (PHE)
against the United States dollar, The Company resolved to mitigate this risk by taking advantage of
market trends. Proper Uming 15 adhered in order to realize a foreign currency gain,

Exposure to foreign exchange risk results primarily from the movements of the Philippine peso against
the United States (11.5.) Dollar that arises from the Company's cash and cash equivalents and held 1o
maturity financial assets, which are denominated in U5, Dollars. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
currency exchange rates used to translate ULS. Dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities
armounted (o P44.617 and P44 .40, respectively.
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The table below summarizes the Company®s exposure to foreign exchange risk as of December 31, 2014
and 2013. Included in the table are the Company®s assets al carmying amounts, categorized by currency.

014 2013

USD FHP USD FHP
Cash nd cash equivalents s 1369 P 10426818 § mae P 9,380,758
Held-to-maturity investments G745 27,108,000 610,428 1103

5 L JVE I ﬂ&!ll 5 1707 P 36,483 758

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in the US dollar rate,
with all variable held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monctary assets ) and the Company*s equity.

LIS § Depreciates UZ § Appreciates

2014 2003 2014 2013
Effect on profit before tax £ B4I1,155 5 BT 5 (B41,155) §  (820,707)
Effect on equity 588,809 575,195 {588,809) {575,195)

fmderest rate risk

The Company”s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the Company’s held-to-
maturity invesiments.

The Company*s policy is to manage its interest income using fixed rates receivable.
Interest risk o which fimancial assets are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash
flows or fair value of financial assets because of a change in market interest rates, Interest is managed

principally using mixed of fixed and variable rate receivable.

Financial assets exposed to interest rate risk follow:

WVarishle Fixed Total

As of December 31, 2004
Financial sssels;

H:H-m—milymﬁmm P - P MO0453TH P Wﬂ.iﬂiﬂﬂ

Variable Fixed Tiotal

As of December 31, 2013
Financial asels:

Held-to-maturity investmenis r - F HEE]IHEI | HﬁIDﬁIIHD

The verm and maturity profile of the interest bearing financial assets of the Company, together with its
comesponding nominal amounts and carrying values, are shown in the following table:

Riite:
Interogierm fixisg Hominal Carying
i . Amrmat =Lyew I-Svews >3 year e
A of Decomber M, 2014
Held-nematuity Fiund at the
invesments dade of
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Fatz

Imerestitem  Sximg Nominad Carrying
o e ___piced At =1 you Lfyesrs >3 years Ve
Aol December 31, 2003
TEeld o ety Pied i ihie
eSS e off
1nveilrncat 5.4 I 2246 01,70 6061, 730 . . P 234,061 THY

The following table demonstrates the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Company®s income before income tax in 2014 and 2013 as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013,

2014 . 013
Effect on income Effeci on income
statement Eifect on Eguity stalement Effect on Equity

Imerease in basis points (+100) P riizasn P 1,706 440 P 2398049 P 1,918 439
Decresse in basis paints (<100) 2133 1,7 QE, D40 1,918 439

Egquity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to equily price risk arising from available-for-sale investments.

The available-for-sale investments are revalued on each reporting period end based on quoted market
prices. Any resulling fair value gains or losses arising from the revaluation of the available-for-sale
investments are recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income. Available-for-sale
imvestments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannol be
reliably measure are measured at cost less any impairment losses af end of each reporting period.

Ferir Vel Measurermen

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setiled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm length transaction. [n determining the fair value of its financial
assets and liabilities, the Company takes inlo sccount its current circumstances and the costs that would
be incurred 1o exchange or settls the underlying financial assets and liabilities.
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2014 2013
Carryimg Fair Carrying Fair
Amsouni Valug Armeuni Waloe
Assets {in thowsamis)

Cash and cash equivalenis F 41,570 P 41,576 P 7es P 37,795
Prenaiums dus fiom ceding compamics 17,250 17,28 19611 19,611
Reinsurance recoverable on losses K 50 LrS kL S3E0N A3,80]
Premiums receivable 29,449 19 469 12473 19473
Commission neceivahle 11,154 11,194 10 598 10,59
Premiums reserve withheld by ceding companies 11,120 11,120 1Ak | 10,931
Receivahles 030 2030 2,047 2047
Dileer clament assils 15,438 15,435 15,850 15,850
Salvape recovenahle o7 o7 1,394 1,344
Avallable-For-sale invesimenis 206, T3S 206,735 176,447 176,447

P o1 B JI8606 P M4TMT P 147 947

Linbilities

Claims payable F T8 P e P GLEIT P 6l 817
Premism due o feimsuners 58,635 58635 54,920 54,930
Conandssion payable 18,200 28,209 211,050 21,05
Feserve lor unsarned premiums 51,566 51,566 42 982 42 982
Payables 1,908 3,918 151 £RS
Premiam reserve withheld for reimsurers 2,577 2577 5202 5,002
Bonases payable (See Mode 1 T) 1842 2842 4,583 4,583
Credits to clisnts {See Mot 17) 1252 5282 2631 263
Docamsentary stamps payabbe (See Mote 17) 2,118 2,118 1,979 1979
Fire service tax payahle (See Note 17) 415 415 302 32

r 224811 P II4 811 P 1 51 P 1496 351

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Fimancial Insirumenis Whose Carrying Amount Approximate Fair Falwe
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, ungquoted equity securities, receivable from
customers, payable to customers, payable to non=customers and pavable to clearing house, which
are all subject to normal trade credit terms and are short=term in nature, approximate their fair

values,

The following table presents the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

at December 31, 2014,

Fair value measurement using

Lhrong iy Significant
Cmoded prices in Significant |
achive markels  obervable mpuls 4 wbie Total
npuis
{Level 1) {Level 2) [Level 3)
{In Thenasamds}

Awailable-for-sale financial asseis

Eg-lil:w:wiliﬁ P lﬂ?ﬁ&ﬁw P - P - P 189 886,507
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The following table presents the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
at Decemnber 31, 2013,

Fair value measurement using

Cheoted prices & Higmficani St
ved prices m ignifica - p— Total
aclive markets  observable inputs Kooty
{Lewel 13 {Level 2) {Level 3}
{In Thouzands}
Munilable-fior-sale financinl assels
EE"LHE seCUfiLies P 159558208 P - P - P 159,598,209

Caplied fisk Management

The Company has established the following capiial management objectives, policies and approach 1o
managing the risks that affect its capital position:

« To maintain the required level of stability of the Company thereby providing a degree of security to
policyholders.

» To allocate capital efficiently and suppaort the development of business by ensuring thal retums on
capital employed meet the requirements of its capital providers and of its sharcholders.

» To retain the financial Mexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital
markets.

# Toalign the profile of assets and |iabilities taking account of risks inherent in the business

» To maintain financial strengih (o satisfy the requirements of the policyholders, regulators and
shareholders.

 To maintain sirong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives
and maximize shareholders value,

The operations of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdictions in
which il operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring aciivities, but also
impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g., capital adequacy) to minimize the risk of default and
insolvency on the part of the insurance companies 1o meel unforeseen liabilities as they arise.

In reporting financial strength, capilal and solvency are measured using the rules preseribed by the
Insurance Commission of the Philippines,

Capitalization Requivenents for Life, Non-Life, and Reinsurance Companies (Republic Aet No. 10607)
Republic Act No. 10607 known as the Amended Insurance Code requires that no new domestic life or
non-life insurance company shall, in a stock corporation, engage in business in the Philippines unless
possessed of a paid up capital equal to at least One Billion Pesos (P11, 000, 004,00). Provided that a
domestic insurance company already doing business in the Philippines shall have a net worth by June 30,
2013 of Two Hundred Fifty Million Pesos (F230,000,000). Furthermore, said company must have by
December 31,2016 an additional Three Hundred Million Pesos (P300,000,000) in net worth; by
December 31, 2019, an additional Three Hundred Fifty Million Pesos (P350,000,000) in net worth; and
by December 31, 2022, an additional four Hundred Million Pesos (P400,000,000) in net worth.

The statutory net worth of life, non-life, and reinsurance companies shall include the Company®s paid-up
capital, unimpaired surplus, retained eamings, and revaluation increments as may be approved by the
[nsurance Commissioner,

As ot December 31, 2014, the Company has complied with the 2013 minimum net worth of P230
millian,

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders comprising issued
capital and retained earnings.
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There were no changes in the Company®s approach to capital management during the period.
Uiimperired Capitel Reguirement

The Insurance Commission provided that for purpeses of determining compliance with the law, rules
and regulations requiring that the paid-up capital should remain intact and unimpaired ot all tmes, the
statement of financial position should show that the net worth or stockholder's equity is at least egual to
the actual paid-up capilal.

The following table shows the net worth and paid-up capital of the Company as of December 31, 2014
and 2013:

2014 i3
Metwarth P 291,842,359 P 275830867
Paid-up capital 250,000,000 250,000,000

fisk-baved Capital Requirements

Insurance Memorandum Circular (IMC) 7-2006 provides for the Bisk-based capital (RBC) [ramework
fior the nonlife insurance indusiry to establish the required amounts of capital to be maintained by the
companies in relation 1o their investment and insurance risk. Every nonlife insurance company is
annually required to maintain 2 minimum RBC ratio of 100% and not fail the trend test. Failure to meet
the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the insurance company to the comesponding regulatory
intervention which has been defined at various levels.

The RBC ratio is calculated by dividing the net worth by the REC requirement,

The following table shows the RBC ratio as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Metwaorth P 1842359 P 275830867
RBC Requirement 5,849,253 51,089,407
.EH'C ratio 443% S40%

The final RBC ratio can be determined only after the sccounts of the Company have been examined by
IC.

25, DIVIDEND RESTRICTION

Dividends to stockholders which the Company may declare are subject 1o the provision of insurance law
which stipulates that no such dividends may be distribuled unless they originated from the excess profits
after considering retention equivalent 1o the paid - up capital, the margin of solvency, the legal reserve
fund, and all losses that may be incurred in settlement of liabilities for laxes and expenses.

19, SOLVENCY REQUIREMENTS

An insurance company doing business in the Fhilippines shall at all times maintain the minimum paid-up
capital and net worth requirements as prescribed by the Commissioner. Such solvency requiremenis shall
be based on imernmtionally sceepted solvency frameworks and adopted only after due consuliation with
the insurance industry associations.
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30, SECURITY FUND CONTRIBUTION

k1

3.

Al insurance companies doing business in the Philippines shall contribute to the Security Fund the
aggregaic amount of P5,000,000. The contributions of the companies shall be in direct proportion to the
companies’ aggregate nel worth as shown in their latest financial statements,

CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party litigant in a case pending in the Regional Trial Court. As at December 31, 2014,
the cutcome of the case is unceriain. According to the Company’s legal counsel, they have a good
chance of winning the case.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL
REVENUE

Revenne Regulation No. 15-2010

On Movember 25, 2010, the Burcau of Intemal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulation {RRE) No. 13-
2010 which took effect on December 29, 2010 which provides for additional information required to be
disclosed in the notes to financial statements regarding taxes, duties and license fee, paid or acorued,
during the taxable year. Specifically, the disclosure should include the following: (a) amount of Value-
Added Tax (VAT) output taxes declared during the year with account title and amount/s; (b) amount of
VAT Input taxes claimed; (<) landed cost of imports and the amount of customs duties and tarifT fees; (d)
amount of excise taxes, classified per major product category; (€) documentary stamp tax (DST) on loan
ingtruments and other transactions; () all other taxes, local and national, license and permit fees lodged
under taxes and licenses account both under the Cost of sales and operating expense accounts; (g)
amount of withholding taxes;(h) perdods covered and amounts of deficiency assessments; and (i) tax
cases and amounts involved,

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 15-2010, the following taxes are either paid or
acerued by the Company.

1. The following table shows the Company's Sales and VAT output declared as of December 31, 2014
and 2003:

toid 013
UInderwriting incom P 101,254,308 P 102,864,724
VAT output 12,150,517 12,343,767
2, The amount ¥YAT Input taxes claimed are broken down as follows:

2014 2013

Beginning of the year P - P -

Current year's purchases

Domestic purchase of services 334,030 3,790,014
3. 343,020 3,790,014
Application against output ¥AT (3.343,020) (3,790,014)

Balance at the end of umE P = P =
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3. Landed Cost, Customs® Duties and Tariff Fees

The Company did not have any importations in 2014 and 2013 that would require for the payrment
of customns duties and tarifT fees.

4. Excise Tax

The Company did not have any transactions in 2014 and 2013 which are subject Lo excise tax.
3, Documentary Stamp Tax

The Company paid P11,451,073 and 11,951,403 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
6. Taxes and Licenses

The details of taxes and licenses are shown as part of expenses follows:

2014 213
Local
Community lax P 10,500 P 10,500
Business taxes and others 835,120 3,281
P B45620 P 353,781
Ee————

7. Withholding taxes

The details of total withholding taxes paid and accrued for the year ended December 31, 2014 and
2003 are as follows:

2014 2013
Mational Internal Revenue Taxes
Withholdimg taxes
Withhalding Tax on Compensation P 1,188,089 F 2185973
Expanded Withholding Tax 1,884,553 2930335
Final Withholding Tax 3,053,871 3,832.831
P 8,126,513 P BM9,139

£, Deficiency Tax Assessments and Tax Cases

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not have any final deficiency tax assessments
from the BIE nor does it have tax cases ouistanding or pending in courts or bodies outside of the
BIR in any of the open years.
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Revemue Regnlation No, 19-201]
These Revenue Regulutions are issued to prescribe the new BIR Forms that will be used for Income Tax

liling covering and starting with Calendar Year 2011, and to modify Revenue Memorandum Circular Ne.
57-2011.

1. RevenuesReceipisTees

2014
Underwriting income P 116,706,203
2. Costof Services
2014
UNDERWRITING EXPFENSES
Agenls' commission and expenses P 33545132
Claims, losses paid and adjustment expenses 26,635,559
Insurance expenges 22,553,262
Total underwriting expenses 23,136,951
COST OF SERYVICES
Salaries and wages 0,206,786
Officers and employees benefits 2525741
Taxes and licenses 845,620
Communication and postage Sk 0000
Primting, stationery and supplics 420 93
Professional fees 868,846
Repairs and maintenance 274,018
14,694,914
P 97,831,867
¥. Mon-operating dnd Taxable Ciher [ncome
2014

Others P 758,797
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4, Nemized Deduction

2014

Salarics and wages P 3,945,763
Boms 2,841,830
Deepreciation and amortization 1,611,927
Officers’ and employees benefits 1, 082460
Light and water 997,330
Rental expenses * B0R057
Professional fees B8543
Transportation and iravel 672,378
Communication and postage 544,001
Direciors’ fiees and allowances 454,000
Representation and enteriaimment 247,585
Printing, stationary and supplies 184,244
Kepairs and maintenance 117436
Insurance 91,4614
Donations and contributions 21,500
Miscellancous expenses 8,152,153
P22 ThS, 125

- —

5. Taxes end Licenses

The details of the Company®s taxes and licenses are presented in No. 5 and & of Revenue Regulation
Mo, 13-2010 notes.

6, Other Information

All other information preseribed o be disclosed by the BIR has been included in this note,
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EVIPIRE
INSURANCE CO.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Empire Insurance Company is responsible for the preparation and lair presentation of the
financinl statements for the years ended Decamber 31, 2014 and 2013, in accordance with the preseribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein. This responsibility includes designing and implementing imernal controls
relevunt to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due 1o fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting
estimales that are reasenable in the circumsiances,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the stockholders.,

a~ A :". |.':'
Teodore Santamaria Canlas & Co, and Mercado, Calderon, Jaravata & Co., the independent auditors,
appomited by the siockholders for the period December 31, 2004 and 2013, respectively, have examined the lnancial
statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in their report e the
stockholders, have expressed their opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such exumination:

= Drigtual Bignad - - Original Signed - Original Signed -
AUGUSTO BENEDICTO L. SANTOQS”  JJOSE MA. G. SANTOS ROMAN L. SANTOS
Chairman of the Board President Treasurer

= Original Signed-

F
p“u'uﬁr': W h’.h:"f]:.l
Azglistant Treazurer

Signed this 16™ day of April, 2005
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